

2022 Security & Fire Safety Report

3300 E. JEFFERSON STE 450 DETROIT, MI 48207 MAIN PHONE LINE: 313-974-6164 <u>WWW.DYMONDDESIGNSBEAUTY.COM</u>

Table of Contents

ANNUAL SECURITY & FIRE SAFETY REPORT	1
Federal Regulations	4
Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan	1
Reporting a Crime or Emergency	5
Response to Reports	5
Emergency Response	5
Emergency Notification	5
Timely Warning	5
Evacuation Procedures	5
Voluntary Confidential Reporting Procedures	7
Authority and Jurisdiction	7
Non-Campus Student Organizations / Locations	7
Security and Facilities Access	7
Crime Prevention / Security Awareness Programs	7
Sexual Harassment Policy Statement	3
Violence against Women Act - https://clerycenter.org/policy-resources/vawa/	3
Sexual Assault and Other Important Definitions	3
Violence against Women / Victims' Rights1	3
Violence against Women Act / Sexual Assault Adjudication of Violations14	1
Reports of Sexual or Gender-Based Harassment and Other Forms of Interpersonal Violence 1	5
Procedures for Investigating and Resolving Reports against DDBS Student and Faculty	5
Initial Assessment1	5
Threat Assessment	7
Evaluation Panel1	7
Health and Safety Threat Assessment1	7
Disclosures of Information to Law Enforcement1	3
School Actions Following Health and Safety Threat Assessment	Э
Notice to Complainant and Respondent of School Actions2	1
Notice of Potential School Actions against Student Groups or Organizations2	1
DDBS Resolution Process	2
Formal Resolution	2

Notice of Investigation	22
Other Forms of Discrimination and Harassing Conduct	23
Presumption of Non-Responsibility and Participation by the Parties	23
Timeframe for Completion of Investigation	24
Overview of Investigation	24
Advisors	24
Prior or Subsequent Conduct	24
Prior Sexual History	25
Relevance	25
Site Visit(s)	25
Coordination with Law Enforcement	26
Draft Investigation Report	26
Final Investigation Report	26
Recommended Finding(s) of Responsibility	27
Recommended Finding(s) of No Responsibility	27
Impact and Mitigation Statements	27
Timing of Responsibility	28
Acceptance of Responsibility	28
Review Panel Hearing	28
Postponement of Hearing	29
Hearing Format	29
Participation in the Hearing	29
Determination of the Review Panel	
Sanctions	31
Transcript Notations	33
Decision of the Review Panel	33
Final Outcome Letter	33
Release of Documents	33
Alternative Resolution	33
Academic Transcript Notations	35
Records Retention	35
Prevention Education	36
Student and Employee Rights	

Crime Statistics Report	
Fire Safety Report	37
DRUG AND ALCOHOL PREVENTION POLICY	37
Policy Reason	37
DDBS Drug and Alcohol Policy	37
Alcohol and Drug Testing Policy	37
Testing Methods and Conditions	37
Employee and Student Testing Rights	
Refusal of Testing	38
DDBS's Policy on Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages on Campus	
DDBS's Policy on Consumption and Possession of Marijuana	
Drug-Free Workplace with Drug & Alcohol Polices and Abuse Prevention Program	
Disciplinary Action upon Conviction	40
Title IV Federal Financial Aid Drug Polices	40
Biennial Review Policy	41
Biennial Review Procedure	41
Abuse Prevention Program	42
Help, Information, & Resources	42
Appendix A – Federal Trafficking Penalties	44
Appendix B – Federal Trafficking Penalties - Marijuana	45
Appendix C – Crime Statistics Report	46
Appendix D – Fire Safety Report	47
Appendix E – Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan	48

ANNUAL SECURITY & FIRE SAFETY REPORT

Federal Regulations

Each year, Dymond Designs Beauty School (DDBS) publishes an Annual Security & Fire Safety Report of crime statistics for each of the three most recent years. DDBS is located in Harbortown, Detroit, at 3300 E. Jefferson, Ste 450, Detroit, MI 48207. The crime statistics are reported for the Harbortown facility and vicinity.

This report includes statistics for the facility or public property within or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the facility. This report is compiled from all of the incidents reported to the school by any one of the following sources:

- Victim
- Witness
- Third Party
- Perpetrator
- Local law enforcement agencies.

This report includes policies, procedures, programs, and statistics on Murder, Non-negligent and Negligent Manslaughter, Sex Offenses, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Motor Vehicle Theft, Arson, Hate Crimes, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, and Stalking. Also included are arrests or disciplinary referrals for Illegal Weapons Possession and Drug or Liquor Law violations. This annual statement is collected, reported, and disseminated to the school community, as well as to the U.S. Department of Education.

The Annual Security Report will be retained by the Financial Aid office at DDBS for a period of seven (7) years. The Annual Security Report is published online each year by **January 31** at dymonddesignssalon.com/school. Enrolled students and employees of DDBS may find the published report on the school website. Hard copies are provided by request to prospective students and employees upon request.

This Annual Security Report is published in compliance with the Jeanne Clery Act and is prepared using publicly available crime statistics from the Detroit Police Department. Additional statistics are compiled by crimes reported by students, employees, witnesses and other third party agencies and organizations.

Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan

Schools are required to maintain an Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan (EREP) which includes plans and instructions to be followed by campus administration, faculty, staff, students and guests in the event of emergencies and evacuations. DDBS's Director of Operations is

responsible for maintaining procedures and reporting the EREP. The Health Safety and Evacuation Policy is included in the DDBS Program Catalog & Student Handbook. Prospective students and employees may request a paper copy at any time from the Director of Operations or the Admissions Coordinator.

See the EREP in Appendix E and in the Operations Manual.

Reporting a Crime or Emergency

DDBS encourages accurate and prompt reporting of all crimes to local law enforcement. If the victim is unable (physically/mentally) to make such a report, DDBS administrative staff will contact the local law enforcement agency on their behalf upon request. If anyone on campus, in or on a non-campus building or property, or on public property within or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus is a victim of a crime, a witness to a crime, has third party information, or observes suspicious activity, they should immediately report it local law enforcement and DDBS staff.

Crimes should be reported to the administrative staff to ensure inclusion in the annual crime statistics and to aid in providing timely warning notices to the school community.

Response to Reports

All reported crimes may be investigated by the school and reported to local authorities. Any crime may become a matter of public record. If assistance is required from a local law enforcement agency or the local fire department, DDBS staff will contact the appropriate agency.

Emergency Response

Crimes are to be reported immediately by calling local authorities and then notifying DDBS staff. If a victim requires assistance, DDBS staff will report the incident on their behalf.

Emergency Notification

Upon confirmation of an emergency or ongoing dangerous situation at the facility, in or on a non-campus building or property, or on public property within or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus that, in the judgment of school leadership in consultation with local law enforcement, or their designee, that constitutes an immediate threat to the health or safety of some or all of the members of the DDBS community, an emergency notification will be immediately issued to the community or the segment of the community that is affected by the emergency by means of the "Remind" app text message. The decision to issue an emergency notification, determining the appropriate division of the campus community to notify, and the content of the notification will be made on a case-by-case basis by the Director of Operations, the Campus Safety Coordinator.

The following information will be promptly communicated:

- Incident facts,
- The nature of the incident,
- Any continuing or immediate danger to the campus community,
- The possible risk to the DDBS community, and
- Law enforcement effort.

DDBS will notify without delay, keeping the safety of the community in mind.

Timely Warning

All crimes specific to the Clery Act are required to be assessed for a potential Timely Warning Notice if the crime represents a serious or continuing threat to the community.

In the event that a crime constituting a serious or continuing threat to persons, property, or serves as an educational effort to prevent similar crimes in the future occurs within the Clery geography (in or on a non-campus building/property, on campus, or public property within or immediately adjacent and accessible to campus property), a school-wide timely warning will be issued by email from the Campus Safety Coordinator, in consultation with other designees. The message will be a community-wide email notification.

The decision to issue a timely warning will be made on a case-by-case basis in light of all the facts surrounding the crime, including factors such as the date and time of the crime or incident versus the date it was reported to DDBS staff or local authorities. Timely Warnings are typically issued for the following Uniformed Crime Reporting Program (UCR) or National Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS) crime classifications: major incidents of arson, aggravated assault, and murder/non-negligent manslaughter, robbery, and sex offenses. Cases of aggravated assault and sex offenses are considered on a case-by-case basis, depending on the facts of the case and the information known by local law enforcement and DDBS administration. Sex offenses will be considered on a case-by-case basis depending on when and where the incident occurred, when it was reported, and the amount of information known by local law enforcement and DDBS administration.

Evacuation Procedures

Emergency response and evacuation procedures shall be published on an annual basis. This shall be done through student and faculty orientations and the posting of evacuation policies in classrooms and office areas. The fire drill policy is available on request. Additionally, anyone with information warranting an emergency response or evacuation may report the circumstances to any DDBS staff member.

Voluntary Confidential Reporting Procedures

DDBS encourages anyone who is the victim or witness to any crime to promptly report the incident to the police. Because police reports are public record under state law, the police department cannot hold reports of crime in confidence. DDBS does not allow voluntary confidential reporting. DDBS does not have Pastoral or Professional Counselors, therefore they cannot notify people of the reporting procedures for the institution.

Authority and Jurisdiction

The jurisdiction of the DDBS administration includes property owned, leased, controlled, or occupied by DDBS. DDBS staff are not vested with general police authority and do not possess arrest power. Criminal incidents are referred to the Detroit Police Department. DDBS instructors have administrative authority to ask persons for identification and to determine whether individuals have lawful business at DDBS. DDBS encourages anyone with information regarding a crime or suspicious persons or activities to report it accurately and promptly to the local police agency.

Non-Campus Student Organizations / Locations

There are no non-campus student organizations that are officially recognized by DDBS. There are no non-campus locations of student organizations that would require the monitoring and recording through local police agencies of criminal activity by students.

Security and Facilities Access

DDBS works in conjunction with local law enforcement should the need arise. During business hours, the school is open to students, family, employees, contractors, guests, patrons, and invitees. During non-business hours, access to the facility is by key only. In the case of periods of extended closing, the school will admit only those with existing approval to the facilities. Emergencies may necessitate changes or alterations to any posted business hours. To remain compliant with OSHA regulations, and for the safety and security of our students and staff, access to some areas will be restricted.

Crime Prevention / Security Awareness Programs

A common theme of all awareness and crime prevention programs is to encourage students and employees to be aware of their responsibility for their own security and the security of others. DDBS addresses topics such as personal safety, alcohol and drug abuse awareness and sexual assault prevention. DDBS does not currently offer a crime prevention program. However, DDBS encourages all students and staff to take advantage of community anti-crime programs. Numerous crime awareness and prevention publications and information are available at no charge from the Detroit Crime Commission (313) 888-9297 and online at <u>detroitcrimecommission.org</u>.

Sexual Harassment Policy Statement

DDBS does not discriminate on the basis of sex in its educational programs. Sexual harassment and sexual violence are considered to be types of sex discrimination. Other acts can also be forms of sex-based discrimination and are also prohibited whether sexually based or not. These other acts include dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking. DDBS issues this statement of policy to inform the community of our comprehensive plan addressing sexual misconduct, educational programs, and procedures that address sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking. This policy applies whether those acts occur on- or off-campus and when it is reported to a DDBS staff member. In this context, DDBS prohibits the offenses of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking and reaffirms its commitment to maintain a campus environment emphasizing the dignity and worth of all members of the community.

Violence against Women Act - https://clerycenter.org/policy-resources/vawa/

The Violence against Women Act of 1994 (VAWA) has been reauthorized in 2000, 2005, and again in 2013. VAWA is a comprehensive legislative package designed to improve criminal justice responses to sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking and to increase the availability of services for victims and survivors. The VAWA amendments to the Clery Act expand the rights afforded to campus survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking. It also details the role of law enforcement, the types of crime mandated for reporting, and stipulates the need for violence prevention programming.

Sexual Assault and Other Important Definitions

DDBS is committed to ensuring the safety of all students, faculty, and staff by crafting and employing a mandatory training program that educates our faculty and staff about violence against women and provides information and online resources for handling such instances of violence. "Rape" is now inclusive of sexual assault with an object and forcible sodomy and can be perpetrated against both women and men. DDBS is committed to increase awareness of the issues regarding sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking.

1. <u>Consent</u>: CONSENT is defined by Merriam Webster as: 1. To give assent or approval, agree. 2. To be in concord in opinion or sentiment. In Michigan, consent as it relates to sexual assaults is evaluated on several factors. Victims cannot give consent if: Victim is under 16; victim incapacity (victim is mentally incapable– a mental disease or defect makes the victim incapable of understanding the nature of his/her conduct); mentally incapacitated–(victim is temporarily incapable of a ppraising or controlling his/her conduct due to the influence of a narcotic, anesthetic

or other substance administered without consent or due to any other act committed upon the victim without consent); and/or physically helpless (victim is unconscious, asleep, or for any other reason physically unable to communicate unwillingness to act); assailant uses force or coercion.

2. <u>Sexual Assault</u>: An offense that meets the definition of rape, fondling, incest, or statutory rape as used in the FBI's Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) program.

In Michigan Criminal sexual assaults are defined as: sexual penetration or sexual contact with a person without their consent, or with someone who is incapable of giving consent.

- 3. <u>Sex Offenses</u>: Per the National Incident-Based Reporting System User Manual from the FBI UCR Program, a sex offense is "any sexual act directed against another person, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim if incapable of giving consent."
 - <u>**Rape</u>** The penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina or anus with anybody part or object, or oral penetration by a sex organ of another person, without the consent of the victim.</u>
 - **Fondling** The touching of private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her age or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental incapacity.
 - <u>Incest</u> Sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
 - <u>Statutory Rape</u> Sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.
- 3. Domestic Violence: a felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed
 - By a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim,
 - By a person with whom the victim shares a child in common,
 - By a person cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner,
 - By a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred; or
 - By any person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred.

In Michigan, domestic violence means the occurrence of any of the following acts by a person that is not an act of self-defense: Causing or attempting to cause physical or mental harm to a family or household member, placing a family or household member in fear of physical or mental harm, causing or attempting to cause a family or household member to engage in involuntary sexual activity by force, threat of force, or duress, engaging in activity toward a family or household member that would cause a reasonable person to feel terrorized, frightened, intimidated, threatened, harassed, or molested.

Family or household member includes any of the following: spouse or former spouse, an individual with whom the person resides or has resided, an individual with whom the person has or has had a dating relationship, an individual with whom the person is or has engaged in a sexual relationship, an individual to whom the person is related or was formerly related by marriage, an individual with whom the person has a child in common.

- 4. **<u>Dating Violence</u>**: violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim
 - The existence of such a relationship will be determined based on the reporting party's statement with consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.
 - For the purposes of this definition, dating violence includes, but is not limited to, sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse.
 - Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of domestic violence.
 - Any incident meeting this definition is considered a crime for the purposes of Clery Act reporting.

In Michigan dating violence is violence when a person is in a dating relationship with someone. Dating relationship means frequent, intimate associations primarily characterized by the expectation of affectional involvement. Dating relationship does not include a causal relationship or an ordinary fraternization between 2 individuals in a business or social context.

5. <u>Stalking</u>: Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to

- Fear for the person's safety or the safety of others; or
- Suffer substantial emotional distress.

For the purposes of this definition:

- <u>*Course of conduct*</u> means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, acts which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property.
- <u>*Reasonable person*</u> means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim.

- <u>Substantial emotional distress</u> means significant mental suffering or anguish that may, but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional treatment or counseling.
- Any incident meeting this definition is considered a crime for the purposes of Clery Act report.

In Michigan STALKING means a willful course of conduct involving repeated or continuing harassment of another individual that would cause a reasonable person to feel terrorized, frightened, intimidated, threatened, harassed, or molested and that actually causes the victim to feel terrorized, frightened, intimidated, threatened, harassed, or molested.

6. Programs to prevent dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and

<u>stalking</u>: Comprehensive, intentional, and integrated programming, initiatives, strategies, and campaigns intended to end dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking that:

- Are culturally relevant, inclusive of diverse communities and identities, sustainable, responsive to community needs, and informed by research or assessed for value, effectiveness, or outcome; and
- Consider environmental risk and protective factors as they occur on the individual, relationship, institutional, community, and societal levels

Programs to prevent dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking include both primary prevention and awareness programs directed at incoming students and new employees and ongoing prevention and awareness campaigns directed at students and employees.

7. <u>Awareness programs</u>: Community-wide or audience specific programming, initiatives, and strategies that increase audience knowledge and share information and resources to prevent violence, promote safety, and reduce perpetration.

8. **<u>Bystander Intervention</u>**: Safe and positive options that may be carried out by an individual or individuals to prevent harm or intervene when there is a risk of dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking;

Bystander intervention includes:

- Recognizing situations of potential harm
- Understanding institutional structures and cultural conditions that facilitate violence, overcoming barriers to intervening, identifying safe and effective intervention options, and taking actions to intervene

9. <u>Ongoing prevention and awareness campaigns</u>: Programming, initiatives, and strategies that are sustained over time and focus on increasing understanding of topics relevant to and skills for addressing dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking, using a range of strategies with audiences throughout the institution.

10. **Primary prevention programs:** Programming, initiatives, and strategies informed by research or assessed for value, effectiveness, or outcome that are intended to stop dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking before they occur through the promotion of positive and healthy behaviors that foster healthy, mutually respectful relationships and sexuality, encourage safe bystander intervention, and seek to change behavior and social norms in healthy and safe directions.

11. <u>**Risk reduction:**</u> Options designed to decrease perpetration and bystander inaction, and to increase empowerment for victims in order to promote safety and to help individuals and communities address conditions that facilitate violence.

12. **Prompt, fair, and impartial proceeding:** A proceeding that is completed within reasonably prompt timeframes designated by an institution's policy, including a process that allows for the extension of timeframes for good cause and with written notice to the accuser and the accused of the delay and the reason for the delay;

Conducted in a manner that:

- Is consistent with the institution's policies and transparent to the accuser and accused;
- Includes timely notice of meetings at which the accuser or accused, or both, may be present; and
- Provides timely and equal access to the accuser, the accused, and appropriate officials to any information that will be used during informal and formal disciplinary meetings and hearings; and
- Conducted by officials who do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against the accuser or the accused.

13. <u>Advisor</u>: Any individual who provides the accuser or accused support, guidance, or advice.

14. **Proceeding:** All activities related to a non-criminal resolution of an institutional disciplinary complaint, including, but not limited to, fact finding investigations, formal or informal meetings, and hearings.

Proceeding does not include communications and meetings between officials and victims concerning accommodations or protective measures to be provided to a victim.

15. **<u>Result</u>**: Any initial, interim, and final decision by any official or entity authorized to resolve disciplinary matters within the institution.

The result must include any sanctions imposed by the institution.

16. <u>Unfounded Crimes</u>: An institution may withhold, or subsequently remove, a reported crime from its crime statistics in the rare situations where sworn or commissioned law enforcement personnel have fully investigated the reported crime and, based on the results of this full investigation and evidence, have made a formal determination that the crime report is false or baseless and therefore "unfounded." Only sworn or commissioned law enforcement personnel may "unfound" a crime report for purposes of reporting under this section. The recovery of stolen property, the low value of stolen property, the refusal of the victim to cooperate with the prosecution, and the failure to make an arrest do not "unfound" a crime report.

Violence against Women / Victims' Rights

DDBS is sensitive to those who report sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking. This includes informing individuals about their right to file criminal charges and doing so on their behalf. Reports should be submitted to:

Marlene Brooks Title IX Coordinator 313-974-6164 <u>marlenebrooks.ddbs@gmail.com</u>

It is the victims' choice to contact local law enforcement in regards to their complaint. DDBS will assist in calling local law enforcement if requested. Additional remedies may be implemented to prevent contact between a complainant (also known as victim) and an accused party. If, for any reason, you cannot reach the Title IX coordinator, the report can be made to any "responsible employee" of DDBS. "Responsible employee" means any employee of DDBS, all of which are designated as Campus Security Authorities as required by the Jeanna Clery Act. In Michigan, a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking has the following rights:

<u>**Crime Victims' Rights Act</u>**: This statute establishes certain protections and rights that allow victims of crimes committed in the state to be active participants in the criminal justice process. It requires that child abuse and sexual assault cases be given priority and brought to trial as quickly as possible. Among the act's many provisions are the victims' right to make an impact statement at sentencing and to participate in parole board proceedings. The law defines a victim as someone who suffers direct or threatened physical, financial, or emotional harm as the result of a crime. Crimes covered by the act include felony violations and serious misdemeanors committed by both adult and juvenile offenders.</u>

<u>Crime Victims' Rights Constitutional Amendment MI</u> (Constitution. Article I Section 24): Many of the protections and rights guaranteed by the Crime Victims' Rights Act

became part of the Michigan Constitution when voters passed a constitutional amendment in 1988. These protections include the right to restitution, notification of court proceedings, fair treatment, and protection from the accused.

Compensation for Injured Crime Victims MCL 18.354: Certain personal injury crime victims may receive financial compensation for particular losses resulting from the crime. A victim of domestic assault may be eligible for assistance under this statute. Personal injury crimes include those in which the victim suffers actual bodily harm, including pregnancy resulting from a crime such as rape.

Personal Protection Order Compliance: DDBS complies with Michigan Law in recognizing Personal Protection Orders. Any person who obtains a Personal Protection Order from Michigan or any reciprocal state should provide a copy to DDBS Security and the Director of Student Affairs. A complainant may then meet with DDBS Security and Staff to develop a safety action plan to reduce risk of harm while on campus or coming and going from campus. This plan may include, but is not limited to: escorts, special parking arrangements, changing classroom location or other academic arrangements. Personal Protection Orders may be available through the local circuit court. To the extent of the victim's cooperation and consent, DDBS will work cooperatively to ensure that the complainant's health, physical safety, work and academic status are protected. For example, if reasonably available, a complainant may be offered changes to academic, living, transportation, or working situations in addition to counseling, health services, and assistance in notifying local law enforcement.

Additionally, personal identifiable information about the victim will be treated as confidential and only shared with persons with a specific need to know who are investigating / adjudicating the complaint or delivering resources or support services to the complainant (for example, publicly available record-keeping for purposes of Clery Act reporting and disclosures will be made without inclusion of identifying information about the victim, as defined in 42 USC 1395 (a) (20).) Further, the institution will maintain as confidential, any accommodations or protective measures provided to the victim to the extent that maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the ability of the institution to provide the accommodations or protective measures.

Violence against Women Act / Sexual Assault Adjudication of Violations

Whether or not criminal charges are filed, the school or a person may file a complaint under the sexual harassment policy alleging that a student or employee violated the school policy on sexual harassment. Reports of all domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking made to DDBS Security and Staff will automatically be referred for investigation and does not require a chain of command in reporting to the Director of Operations for investigation, regardless if the complainant chooses to pursue criminal charges. DDBS uses a "clear and convincing", standard for the ponderance-of-evidence. The disciplinary process will include a

prompt, fair, and impartial investigation and resolution process from the initial investigation to the final result.

Reports of Sexual or Gender-Based Harassment and Other Forms of Interpersonal Violence

DDBS Staff responds sexual harassment as a form of sex discrimination and will respond to and handle immediately in the form of "Incident Reports" of sexual, gender-based and other forms of personal violence, retaliation, intimidation, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking against anyone, student or faculty. Anonymous reporting is not available at this time. There will be an initial discovery phase that could include local police. Upon the determination and recommendation by the Review Panel, an individual may be expelled if found guilty of the reported action.

The policy covers students, employees, contractors, vendors, visitors, guests or other third parties within the DDBS control.

Procedures for Investigating and Resolving Reports against DDBS Student and Faculty

Pursuant to these Procedures, Complainants and Respondents can expect:

- A. Prompt and equitable resolution of allegations of Prohibited Conduct;
- B. Privacy in accordance with the Title IX Policy and any legal requirements;
- C. Reasonably available interim remedial measures, as described in these Procedures and in the applicable Resource Guide;
- D. Freedom from Retaliation for making a good faith report of Prohibited Conduct or participating in any proceeding under the Title IX Policy;
- E. The responsibility to refrain from Retaliation directed against any person for making a good faith report of Prohibited Conduct or participating in any proceeding under the Title IX Policy;
- F. The responsibility to provide truthful information in connection with any report, investigation, or resolution of Prohibited Conduct under the Title IX Policy or these Procedures;
- G. The opportunity to articulate concerns or issues about proceedings under the Title IX Policy and these Procedures;
- H. Timely notice of any meeting or proceeding at which the party's presence is contemplated by these Procedures;
- I. The opportunity to choose an advisor, including the right to have that advisor attend any meeting or proceeding at which the party's presence is contemplated by these Procedures; in hearings students will never cross-examine each other personally.
- J. Written notice of an investigation, including notice of potential Title IX Policy violations and the nature of the alleged Prohibited Conduct;

- K. The opportunity to challenge the panel of Investigators or any member of the Review Panel for bias or conflict of interest;
- L. The opportunity to offer information, present evidence, and identify witnesses during an investigation;
- M. The opportunity to be heard, orally, in writing, or by video conference given the institution is operating mostly online due to certain circumstances, as to the determination of a Title IX Policy violation and the imposition of any sanction(s);
- N. Timely and equal access to any information that will be used during Alternative or Formal Resolution proceedings and related meetings;
- O. Reasonable time to prepare any response contemplated by these Procedures;
- P. Written notice of any extension of timeframes for good cause; and
- Q. Written notice of the outcome of any Formal Resolution proceedings, including the determination of a Title IX Policy violation, imposition of any sanction(s), and the rationale for each.

Initial Assessment

Upon receipt of a report of Prohibited Conduct committed by a student or faculty, DDBS Security and Staff will make an initial assessment of the reported information and respond to any immediate health or safety concerns raised by the report. The initial assessment will:

- A. Assess the Complainant's safety and well-being and offer immediate support and assistance and request support from local law enforcement;
- B. Inform the Complainant of the right to seek medical treatment, and explain the importance of obtaining and preserving forensic and other evidence;
- C. Inform the Complainant of the right to contact law enforcement, decline to contact law enforcement, and/or seek a protective order;
- D. Inform the Complainant about DDBS and community resources, the right to seek appropriate and available remedial and protective measures, and how to request those resources and measures;
- E. Inform the Complainant of the right to seek Alternative Resolution (where available) or Formal Resolution under these Procedures; ascertain the Complainant's expressed preference (if the Complainant has, at the time of the initial assessment, expressed a preference) for pursuing Alternative Resolution, Formal Resolution, or neither; and discuss with the Complainant any concerns or barriers to participating in any DDBS investigation and resolution under these Procedures;
- F. Explain DDBS prohibition against Retaliation and that DDBS will take prompt action in response to any act of Retaliation;
- G. Assess the nature and circumstances of the report, including whether it provides the names and/or any other information that personally identifies the Complainant, the Respondent, any witness, and/or any other third party with knowledge of the reported incident;

- H. Ascertain the ages of the Complainant and the Respondent, if known, and, if either of the parties is a minor (under 18), contact the appropriate child protective service agency; and
- I. Communicate with appropriate DDBS officials to determine whether the report triggers any Clery Act obligations, including entry of the report in the daily crime log and/or issuance of a timely warning, and take steps to meet those obligations.
- J. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will ensure that the Complainant receives a written explanation of all available resources and options and is offered the opportunity to meet to discuss those resources and options. When a decision is reached to initiate an investigation or to take any other action under these Procedures that impacts a Respondent (including the imposition of interim protective measures), the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will ensure that the Respondent is notified, receives a written explanation of all available resources and options, and is offered the opportunity to meet and have a hearing.

Threat Assessment

Following the initial assessment, DDBS Security and Staff will have a hearing regarding the information known about the reported incident of Prohibited Conduct. The incident reporting may include local authorities. The following known information will be included in but not limited to, names and/or any other information that personally identifies the Complainant, the Respondent, any witnesses, and/or any other third parties with knowledge of the reported incident.

Evaluation Panel

A Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will evaluate every report of Prohibited Conduct. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will convene in person within 72 hours after receiving information from DDBS Security and Staff and will convene again, as necessary, to review any new information as it becomes available. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel may include any and all members of the DDBS Security and Staff and convene as the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel may include any event of the DDBS Security and Staff and convene as the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel and Threat Assessment Team.

The Evaluation operates may request local law enforcement support and may request otherwise confidential information, including law enforcement records, criminal history record information, health records, DDBS disciplinary actions, academic and/or personnel records; and any other information or evidence known to the school or to law enforcement. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel may seek additional information about the reported incident through any other legally permissible means.

Health and Safety Threat Assessment

Risk Factors: The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will determine whether the reported information and any other available information provides a rational basis for

concluding that there is a threat to the health or safety of the Complainant or to any other member of the DDBS community. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will make this determination based upon a review of the totality of the known circumstances, and will be guided by a consideration of the following factors (the "RISK FACTORS"):

- Whether the Respondent has prior arrests, is the subject of prior reports and/or complaints related to any form of Prohibited Conduct, or has any history of violent behavior;
- Whether the Respondent has a history of failing to comply with any DDBS No-Contact Directive, other DDBS protective measures, and/or any judicial protective order;
- Whether the Respondent has threatened to commit violence or any form of Prohibited Conduct;
- Whether the Prohibited Conduct involved multiple Respondents;
- Whether the Prohibited Conduct involved physical violence. "Physical violence" means exerting control over another person through the use of physical force. Examples of physical violence include hitting, punching, slapping, kicking, restraining, choking and brandishing or using any weapon;
- Whether the report reveals a pattern of Prohibited Conduct (e.g., by the Respondent, by a particular group or organization, around a particular recurring event or activity, or at a particular location);
- Whether the Prohibited Conduct was facilitated through the use of "date-rape" or similar drugs or intoxicants;
- Whether the Prohibited Conduct occurred while the Complainant was unconscious, physically helpless or unaware that the Prohibited Conduct was occurring;
- Whether the Complainant is (or was at the time of the Prohibited Conduct) a minor (under 18); and
- Whether any other aggravating circumstances or signs of predatory behavior are present.

Disclosures of Information to Law Enforcement

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel is required to disclose information about alleged Prohibited Conduct to law enforcement in the following circumstances:

• If the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel (or, in the absence of consensus within the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, an appointed representative) concludes that there is a significant and articulable threat to the health or safety of the Complainant or to any other member of DDBS community and that disclosure of available information (including the names and any other information that personally identifies the Complainant, the Respondent, any witnesses, and/or any other third parties with knowledge of the reported incident) is necessary to protect the health or safety of the Complainant or other individuals, the representatives of the Title IX Evaluation and

Review Panel will immediately disclose the information to the law enforcement agency that would be responsible for investigating the alleged act of Prohibited Conduct.

- The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will make this determination based upon a review of the totality of the known circumstances and consideration of the list of RISK FACTORS.
- If the alleged act of Prohibited Conduct constitutes a felony violation of the State of Michigan, the Evaluation Representative will so inform the other members of the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel and will, within 24 hours,
 - Consult with the appropriate law enforcement or prosecutor who would be responsible for prosecuting the alleged act of Prohibited Conduct (the "Prosecuting Authority"), and
 - Disclose to the Prosecuting Authority the information then known to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel.
- DDBS will consult with the Prosecuting Authority and law enforcement and work to protect identities of victims and witnesses. Any member of the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel who individually concludes that the alleged act of Prohibited Conduct would constitute a felony violation may consult with the Prosecuting Authority and make the required disclosures) in the manner and within the timeframe set forth.
- The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will reconvene as necessary to continue to evaluate whether any new or additional information received triggers any further obligations) under the Clery Act or with respect to any child protective service agency, and will direct the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel to take such further actions, as necessary.

School Actions Following Health and Safety Threat Assessment

Upon completion of the health and safety threat assessment, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will determine the course of action under these Procedures, which may include, without limitation, Formal Resolution and/or Alternative Resolution (as required and recommended by the Evaluation Team. A Complainant may request that personally-identifying information not be shared with the Respondent, that no investigation be pursued, and/or that no further action be taken. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will seek to honor the preferences of the Complainant wherever possible. In all cases, the initial report, the health and safety threat assessment, and the determinations of the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will be documented and retained by DDBS in accordance with applicable law.

In every case in which the Complainant reports Prohibited Conduct and requests an investigation and disciplinary action, the Evaluation Team will promptly initiate Formal Resolution under these Procedures. Where the Complainant requests anonymity, that an investigation not be pursued, and that no disciplinary action be taken. A Complainant may request that personally-identifying information not be shared with the Respondent, that no investigation be pursued, and that no disciplinary action be taken.

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will consider the following factors in evaluating such request(s):

- the totality of the known circumstances,
- the presence of any RISK FACTORS,
- the potential impact of action(s) on the Complainant,
- any evidence showing that the Respondent made statements of admission or otherwise accepted responsibility for the Prohibited Conduct,
- the existence of any independent information or evidence regarding the Prohibited Conduct, and
- any other available and relevant information.

DDBS will seek to honor the Complainant's request(s) if it is possible to do so while also protecting the health and safety of the Complainant and DDBS community.

Determination That a Complainant's Request(s) Can Be Honored. Where the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel determines that a Complainant's request(s) (that personally-identifying information not be shared with the Respondent, that no investigation be pursued, and/or that no disciplinary action be taken) can be honored, DDBS may nevertheless take other appropriate steps designed to eliminate the reported conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects on the Complainant and DDBS community. Those steps may include offering appropriate remedial measures to the Complainant, providing targeted training or prevention programs, providing or imposing other remedies tailored to the circumstances as a form of Alternative Resolution, or escalation to law enforcement.

At any time, the Complainant may choose to pursue Alternative Resolution (as recommended) or Formal Resolution under these Procedures. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel also may request that a report be reopened and pursued under these Procedures if any new or additional information becomes available.

Determination that a Complainant's Request(s) Cannot Be Honored. When the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel has determined that a Complainant's request(s) (that personallyidentifying information not be shared with the Respondent, that no investigation be pursued, and/or that no disciplinary action be taken) cannot be honored (i.e., because honoring the Complainant's request(s) would impede DDBS ability to ensure the health and safety of the Complainant and other members of DDBS community), the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will direct any appropriate DDBS actions. They may include, without limitation, causing the CEO, COO and/or Director of Student Services to impose a No-Contact Directive or an Interim Disciplinary Suspension on the Respondent; may place a "hold" on the Respondent's school transcript; may initiate an investigation and Formal Resolution under these Procedures; and/or arrange, impose, or extend any other appropriate remedial and/or protective measures. In cases that the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel has determined that DDBS must proceed with an investigation despite a Complainant's request to the contrary, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will make reasonable efforts to protect the privacy of the Complainant. However, actions that may be required as part of DDBS investigation will involve speaking with the Respondent and others who may have relevant information, in which case the Complainant's identity may have to be disclosed. In such cases, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will notify the Complainant that DDBS intends to proceed with an investigation, but that the Complainant is not required to participate in the investigation or in any other actions undertaken by DDBS.

Where a Complainant declines to participate in an investigation, DDBS ability to meaningfully investigate and respond to a report may be limited. In such cases, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel may pursue the report if it is possible to do so without the Complainant's participation in the investigation or resolution (e.g., where there is other relevant evidence of the Prohibited Conduct, such as recordings from security cameras, corroborating reports from other witnesses, physical evidence, or any evidence showing that the Respondent made statements of admission or otherwise accepted responsibility for the Prohibited Conduct). In the absence of such other evidence, however, DDBS will only be able to respond to the report in limited and general ways (i.e., through the provision of remedial measures, targeted training or prevention programs, or other remedies tailored to the circumstances).

Notice to Complainant and Respondent of School Actions

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will promptly inform the Complainant of any action(s) undertaken by DDBS to respond to a health or safety threat to the Complainant or DDBS community, including the decision to proceed with an investigation. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel also will promptly inform the Respondent of any action(s) (including any interim protective measures) that will directly impact the Respondent, and provide an opportunity for the Respondent to respond to such action(s). The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel retains the discretion to impose and/or modify any interim protective measures based on all available information. Interim protective measures will remain in effect until the resolution of the report, unless new circumstances arise which warrant reconsideration of the protective measures prior to the hearing and determination by the Review Panel. A Complainant or Respondent may challenge interim protective measures or other actions, or failure to impose interim protective measures or take other actions, by contacting the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel to address any concerns.

Notice of Potential School Actions against Student Groups or Organizations

DDBS does not offer or support Student Groups and Student Organizations.

DDBS Resolution Process

These Procedures offer two forms of resolution of reports of Prohibited Conduct: (1) Formal Resolution, which involves an investigation, and review and sanction (if applicable) by DDBS Review Panel, and (2) Alternative Resolution when applicable. DDBS includes a variety of informal options for resolving reports.

Formal Resolution

Formal Resolution is commenced when:

- A Complainant reports that a Student has engaged in one or more instances of Prohibited Conduct and requests, at any time, an investigation and disciplinary action; or
- Alternative Resolution does not resolve a reported incident of Prohibited Conduct and, in the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel's discretion, an investigation of the report of Prohibited Conduct is required; or
- At the conclusion of the threat assessment process and procedures as described above, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will determine, based upon a review of the totality of the circumstances and guided by a consideration of the RISK FACTORS, that investigation of the reported conduct is necessary to ensure the health and safety of the Complainant and/or other members of DDBS community, notwithstanding the Complainant's request that personally-identifying information not be shared with the Respondent, that no investigation be pursued, and/or that no disciplinary action be taken.
- Investigation. Whenever Formal Resolution is commenced, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will designate one or more Investigators from DDBS Office for Equal Opportunity and Civil Rights and/or an experienced external investigator to conduct a prompt, thorough, fair, and impartial investigation.

All Investigators will receive annual training on issues related to sexual and gender-based harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking, and on how to conduct an investigation that is fair and impartial, provides parties with notice and a meaningful opportunity to be heard, and protects the safety of Complainants and DDBS community while promoting accountability.

Notice of Investigation

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will notify the Complainant and the Respondent, in writing, of the commencement of an investigation. Such notice will:

- identify the Complainant and the Respondent;
- specify the date, time (if known), location, and nature of the alleged Prohibited Conduct;
- identify potential Title IX Policy violation(s);
- identify the Investigator;
- include information about the parties' respective expectations under the Title IX Policy and these Procedures;
- explain the prohibition against Retaliation;
- instruct the parties to preserve any potentially relevant evidence in any format;
- inform the parties how to challenge participation by the Investigator on the basis of bias or a conflict of interest; and
- provide a copy of the Title IX Policy and these Procedures.

Other Forms of Discrimination and Harassing Conduct

If a report of Prohibited Conduct also implicates other forms of discriminatory and/or harassing conduct prohibited by DDBS Preventing and Addressing Discrimination and Harassment (DDBS) policy and/or any other violation(s) of DDBS's Standards of Conduct, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will evaluate all reported allegations to determine whether the alleged Prohibited Conduct and the alleged violation(s) and/or alleged Standard of Conduct violation(s) may be appropriately investigated together without unduly delaying the resolution of the report of Prohibited Conduct.

Where the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel determines that a single investigation is appropriate, the determination of responsibility for the violation of DDBS policy will be evaluated under the applicable policy (i.e., the Title IX Policy, the DDBS policy, and/or the Standards of Conduct), but the investigation and resolution will be conducted in accordance with these Procedures.

Presumption of Non-Responsibility and Participation by the Parties

The investigation is a neutral fact-gathering process. The Respondent is presumed to be not responsible; this presumption may be overcome only where the Investigator and/or Review Panel conclude that there is sufficient evidence, by a Preponderance of the Evidence, to support a finding that the Respondent violated the Title IX Policy. Neither party is required to participate in the investigation or in any form of resolution under these Procedures and the Investigator will not draw any adverse inference from a decision by either of the parties not to participate.

Timeframe for Completion of Investigation

Extension for Good Cause. Typically, the period from commencement of an investigation through resolution (finding and sanction, if any) will not exceed sixty (60) calendar days. This timeframe may be extended for good cause, which may exist if additional time is necessary to ensure the integrity and completeness of the investigation, to comply with a request by external law enforcement for temporary delay to gather evidence for a criminal investigation, to account for complexities of a case, including the number of witnesses and volume of information provided by the parties, or for other legitimate reasons. The Investigator will notify the parties in writing of any extension of this timeframe and the reason for such extension.

Overview of Investigation

During the investigation, the parties will have an equal opportunity to be heard, to submit information and corroborating evidence, to identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and to submit questions that they believe should be directed by the Investigator to each other or to any witness. The Investigator will notify and seek to meet separately with the Complainant, the Respondent, and third-party witnesses, and will gather other relevant and available evidence and information, including, without limitation, electronic or other records of communications between the parties or witnesses (via voice-mail, text message, email and social media sites), photographs (including those stored on computers and smartphones), and medical records (subject to the consent of the applicable party).

Advisors

Throughout the investigation and resolution process, each party has the right to choose and consult with an advisor. The advisor may be any person, including an attorney, who is not otherwise a party or witness involved in the investigation. The parties may be accompanied by their respective advisors at any meeting or proceeding related to the investigation and resolution of a report under these Procedures. While the advisors may provide support and advice to the parties at any meeting and/or proceeding, they may not speak on behalf of the parties or otherwise participate in, or in any manner disrupt, such meetings and/or proceedings.

Prior or Subsequent Conduct

Prior or subsequent conduct of the Respondent may be considered in determining pattern, knowledge, intent, motive, or absence of mistake. For example, evidence of a pattern of Prohibited Conduct by the Respondent, either before or after the incident in question, regardless of whether there has been a prior finding of a Title IX Policy violation, may be deemed relevant to the determination of responsibility for the Prohibited Conduct under investigation. The determination of relevance of pattern evidence will be based on an assessment of whether the previous or subsequent conduct was substantially similar to the conduct under investigation or indicates a pattern of similar Prohibited Conduct. Such prior or subsequent conduct may also constitute a violation of DDBS policy and/or DDBS Standards of Conduct, in which case it may subject the Respondent to additional sanctions. The Investigator will determine the relevance of this information and both parties will be informed if evidence of prior or subsequent conduct is deemed relevant.

Prior Sexual History

The sexual history of a Complainant or Respondent will never be used to prove character or reputation. Moreover, evidence related to the prior sexual history of either of the parties is generally not relevant to the determination of a Title IX Policy violation and will be considered only in limited circumstances. For example, if the existence of Affirmative CONSENT is at issue, the sexual history between the parties may be relevant to help understand the manner and nature of communications between the parties and the context of the relationship, which may have bearing on whether Affirmative CONSENT was sought and given during the incident in question. However, even in the context of a relationship, Affirmative CONSENT to one sexual act does not, by itself, constitute Affirmative CONSENT to another sexual act, and Affirmative CONSENT on one occasion does not, by itself, constitute Affirmative CONSENT on a subsequent occasion. In addition, prior sexual history may be relevant to explain the presence of a physical injury or to help resolve another question raised by the report. The Investigator will determine the relevance of this information and both parties will be informed if evidence of prior sexual history is deemed relevant.

Relevance

The Investigator has the discretion to determine the relevance of any proffered evidence and to include or exclude certain types of evidence. In general, the Investigator will not consider statements of personal opinion, rather than direct observations or reasonable inferences from the facts, or statements as to any party's general reputation for any character trait.

Site Visit(s)

The Investigator may visit relevant sites or locations and record observations through written, photographic, or other means.

Expert Consultation(s)

The Investigator may consult medical, forensic, technological or other experts when expertise on a topic is needed in order to achieve a fuller understanding of the issues under investigation.

Coordination with Law Enforcement

The Investigator will contact any law enforcement agency that is conducting its own investigation to inform that agency that a DDBS investigation is also in progress; to ascertain the status of the criminal investigation; and to determine the extent to which any evidence collected by law enforcement may be available to DDBS in its investigation. At the request of law enforcement, the Investigator may delay DDBS investigation temporarily while an external law enforcement agency is gathering evidence. The Investigator will promptly resume DDBS investigation when notified that law enforcement has completed the evidence-gathering stage of its criminal investigation.

Draft Investigation Report

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Investigator will prepare a Draft Investigation Report summarizing the information gathered and outlining the contested and uncontested information. The Draft Investigation Report will not include any findings. The Complainant and the Respondent will have an opportunity to review the Draft Investigation Report; meet with the Investigator; submit additional comments and information to the Investigator; identify any additional witnesses or evidence for the Investigator to pursue; and submit any further questions that they believe should be directed by the Investigator to the other party or to any witness. The Investigator will designate a reasonable time for this review and response by the parties, not to exceed five (5) calendar days. In the absence of good cause, information discoverable through the exercise of due diligence that is not provided to the Investigator during the designated review and response period will not be considered in the determination of responsibility for a violation of the Title IX Policy, and will not be considered by the Review Panel.

Final Investigation Report

Unless there are significant additional investigative steps requested by the parties or identified by the Investigator, within five (5) calendar days after

receipt and consideration of any additional comments, questions and/or information submitted by the parties during the designated review and response period, the Investigator will prepare a Final Investigation Report, which will include a recommendation as to whether there is sufficient evidence, by a Preponderance of the Evidence, to support a finding of responsibility for a violation of the Title IX Policy (and, where applicable, the DDBS policy and/or DDBS Standards of Conduct). In reaching this recommended finding, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel may consult with Counsel. The Investigator will deliver the Final Investigation Report to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will notify both parties, simultaneously, that the Final Investigation Report is complete and available for review.

Recommended Finding(s) of Responsibility

When the Investigator determines that there is sufficient evidence, by a Preponderance of the Evidence, to support a finding of responsibility on one or more of the allegations, the Respondent may accept or contest such recommended finding(s) by so notifying the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, in writing. If the Respondent accepts the recommended finding(s) of responsibility, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will refer the case for a Hearing before the Review Panel solely on the issue of sanction. If the Respondent contests one or more of the recommended finding(s), the Respondent may submit to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel a written statement explaining why the Respondent contests such finding(s). The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will ensure that the Complainant has an opportunity to review and respond in writing to any such statement. The

Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will provide the Final Investigation Report, together with any statements by the parties, to the Review Panel for further proceedings.

Recommended Finding(s) of No Responsibility

When the Investigator determines that there is insufficient evidence, by a Preponderance of the Evidence, to support a finding of responsibility on one or more of the allegations, the Complainant may accept or contest the recommended finding(s) by so notifying the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel in writing. If the Complainant accepts the recommended finding(s) of no responsibility, the investigation will be closed and documented in accordance with applicable DDBS policies. If the Complainant contests one or more of the recommended finding(s), the Complainant may submit to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel a written statement explaining why the Complainant contests such finding(s). The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will ensure that the Respondent has an opportunity to review and respond in writing to any such statement. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will provide the Final Investigation Report, together with any statements by the parties, to the Review Panel for further proceedings.

Impact and Mitigation Statements

When there is a finding of responsibility on one or more of the allegations, both parties may submit a statement to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel for consideration by the Review Panel in determining an appropriate sanction.

The Complainant may submit a written statement describing the impact of the Prohibited Conduct on the Complainant and expressing a preference about the sanction(s) to be imposed. The Respondent may submit a written statement explaining any factors that the Respondent believes should mitigate or otherwise be considered in determining the sanctions(s) imposed. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will ensure that each of the parties has an opportunity to review any statement submitted by the other party. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will provide any statement(s) with the Final Investigation Report and the parties' other written submissions to the Review Panel.

Timing of Responsibility

The investigation typically will be completed within 30 calendar days. This period may be extended to account for a previous attempt, if any, at Alternative Resolution, or for other good cause. Any extension, other than for Alternative Resolution, and the reason for the extension, will be shared with the parties in writing.

Acceptance of Responsibility

The Respondent may, at any time, elect to resolve the Formal Resolution process by accepting responsibility for the Prohibited Conduct, in which case the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will refer the matter to the Review Panel to determine the appropriate sanction(s).

Review Panel Hearing

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will appoint a standing pool of trained members of the DDBS community and, at the discretion of the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, external professionals with experience adjudicating cases of Prohibited Conduct.

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will select

- (a) three members from this pool to serve on the Review Panel, and
- (b) an additional member from this pool to serve as the non-voting Hearing Chair.

The Review Panel will review the Investigator's recommended finding(s) and, if applicable, determine any appropriate sanction(s) under these Procedures. All persons serving on any Review Panel (or as the Hearing Chair) must be impartial and free from actual bias or conflict of interest.

- Standard of Review. If either of the parties contests the Investigator's recommended finding(s) of responsibility (or no responsibility) for an alleged violation of the Title IX Policy, the Review Panel will hold a Hearing to determine (1) whether the concerns stated by the contesting party raise substantial doubt about the thoroughness, fairness and/or impartiality of the investigation; and, if not, (2) whether there is sufficient evidence to support the Investigator's recommended finding(s) by a Preponderance of the Evidence.
- Notice and Timing of Hearing. Typically, a Hearing will be held within 30 calendar days from the date of the Notice of Investigation, subject to extension for good cause. The Hearing Chair will notify the parties in writing of the date, time, and location of the

Hearing; the names of the Review Panel members and the Hearing Chair; and how to challenge participation by any member of the Review Panel or the Hearing Chair for bias or conflict of interest. The Hearing will usually be scheduled within five (5) calendar days from the date of the Notice of Hearing, subject to extension for good cause at the discretion of the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel. Good cause for extension may include the unavailability of the parties, the timing of semester breaks or DDBS holidays, or other extenuating circumstances. Any extension, including the reason for the extension, will be shared with the parties in writing. The accused may be suspended from the school during this period.

Postponement of Hearing

Permission to postpone a Hearing may be granted provided that the request to do so is based on a compelling emergency and communicated to the Hearing Chair prior to the time of the Hearing.

Hearing Format

The Hearing is an opportunity for the parties to address the Review Panel, in person about issues relevant to the Standard of Review to be applied by the Review Panel. The parties may address any information in the Final Investigation Report, supplemental statements submitted in response to the Final Investigation Report, and any impact and mitigation statements. Each party has the opportunity to be heard, to identify witnesses for the Review Panel's consideration, and to respond to any questions of the Review Panel. The parties may not directly question each other or any witness, although they may proffer questions for the Review Panel, which may choose, in its discretion, to pose appropriate and relevant questions to the Investigator, the parties and/or any witnesses. A typical hearing may include brief opening remarks by the Complainant and/or Respondent, with follow-up questions posed by the Review Panel, with follow-up questions by the Review Panel of the Investigator or witnesses; and brief concluding remarks by the Complainant and/or Respondent. The Chair of the Review Panel has the discretion to determine the specific Hearing format.

Participation in the Hearing

A. *PARTIES*. Both the Complainant and the Respondent have a right to be present at the Hearing. Either party may request alternative methods for participating in the Hearing that do not require physical proximity to the other party, including participating through electronic means. This request should be submitted to the Hearing Chair at least two (2) calendar days prior to the Hearing.

If, despite being notified of the date, time, and location of the Hearing, either party is not in attendance, the Hearing may proceed and applicable sanctions may be imposed.

Neither party is required to participate in the Hearing in order for the Hearing to proceed.

B. *INVESTIGATOR OR OTHER WITNESSES*. The Review Panel may request the presence of the Investigator or any other witness it deems necessary to its determination.

The parties may also request the presence of any witness they deem relevant to the determination by the Review Panel. The Review Panel has absolute discretion to determine which witnesses are relevant to its determination and may decline to hear from witnesses where it concludes that the information is not necessary for its review.

C. *ADVISORS*. Both the Complainant and the Respondent have the right to be accompanied at the Hearing by an advisor of their choosing. The advisor may be anyone, including an attorney, who is not otherwise a party or witness. While the advisor may provide support and advice to a party at the Hearing, the advisor may not speak on behalf of the party or otherwise participate in, or in any manner disrupt, the Hearing. The DDBS reserves the right to remove any individual whose actions are disruptive to the proceedings.

Determination of the Review Panel

Where either of the parties has contested the recommended finding(s) of responsibility, the members of the Review Panel will, at the conclusion of the Hearing, determine, by 2/3rds majority vote,

- a. whether the concern(s) stated by the contesting party raise substantial doubt about the thoroughness, fairness, or impartiality of the investigation; and, if not,
- b. whether there is sufficient evidence to support the Investigator's recommended finding(s) by a Preponderance of the Evidence.

If the Review Panel finds that concerns stated by the contesting party raise substantial doubt about the thoroughness, fairness, and/or impartiality of the investigation, it will remand the matter to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel with instructions for further investigation or other action. The instructions may include guidance regarding the scope of information to be further investigated and any appropriate stipulations, including the appointment of a new Investigator.

If the Review Panel finds no cause for substantial doubt about the thoroughness, fairness,

and/or impartiality of the investigation, but determines there is insufficient evidence to support the Investigator's recommended finding, it may remand the matter for further investigation, or reject the Investigator's recommended finding(s) and make alternative finding(s).

If the Review Panel finds no cause for substantial doubt about the thoroughness, fairness, and/or impartiality of the investigation and affirms that there is sufficient evidence to support a recommended finding of responsibility by a Preponderance of the Evidence, it will then determine, by majority vote, the appropriate sanctions) for the Prohibited Conduct.

If the Review Panel finds no cause for substantial doubt about the thoroughness, fairness, and/or impartiality of the investigation and affirms a recommended finding of no responsibility, the matter will be considered resolved and the investigation will be closed. The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel may nevertheless ensure that remedial measures remain in effect to support a Complainant.

Sanctions

Where there is a finding of responsibility, the Review Panel may impose one or more sanctions. Sanctions may include any of the sanctions that are available for violations of DDBS Standards of Conduct, including:

- Expulsion: Termination of student status for any indefinite period
- Suspension: Exclusion from classes and other privileges or activities or from DDBS for a definite period of time
- Suspension held in abeyance: Exclusion from classes and other privileges or activities or from DDBS for a definite period of time to be enforced should another violation occur
- Restitution: Reimbursement for damages or misappropriation of property
- Disciplinary Probation: Exclusion from participation in privileged or extracurricular activities for a definite period of time
- Reprimand: A written censure for violation of the Title IX Policy (and, if applicable, the DDBS policy and/or the Standards of Conduct) placed in the Student's record, including the possibility of more severe disciplinary sanctions should another violation occur within a stated period of time
- Warning Notice: A notice, in writing, that continuation or repetition of conduct found wrongful, within a period of time stated in the warning, may be cause for more severe disciplinary action
- Admonition: An oral statement that the Student violated the Title IX Policy (and, if applicable, the DDBS policy and/or the Standards of Conduct)

The Title IX Policy prohibits a broad range of conduct, all of which is serious in nature. The propriety of any particular sanction is reviewed on an individual basis based on the unique facts and circumstances as found by the Review Panel. In keeping with DDBS commitment to foster an environment that is safe, inclusive, and free from discrimination and harassment, the Title IX Policy provides the Review Panel with wide latitude in the imposition of sanctions tailored to the facts and circumstances of the Prohibited Conduct, the impact of the conduct on the Complainant and the DDBS community, and accountability by the Respondent. The imposition of sanctions is designed to eliminate Prohibited Conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects, while supporting DDBS educational mission and legal obligations. Sanctions may include educational, restorative, rehabilitative, and punitive components. Some conduct, however, is so egregious in nature, harmful to the individuals involved or so deleterious to the educational process that it requires severe sanctions, including suspension or expulsion from DDBS.

Once the Review Panel has determined that there is sufficient evidence, by a Preponderance of the Evidence, to support a finding of responsibility under the Title IX Policy, any one or more sanctions may be imposed. In determining the appropriate sanction(s), the Review Panel will be guided by a number of considerations, including:

- The severity, persistence or pervasiveness of the Prohibited Conduct;
- The nature or violence (if applicable) of the Prohibited Conduct;
- The impact of the Prohibited Conduct on the Complainant;
- The impact or implications of the Prohibited Conduct within DDBS community;
- Prior misconduct by the Respondent, including the Respondent's relevant prior disciplinary history, at DDBS or elsewhere, and any criminal convictions;
- Whether the Respondent has accepted responsibility for the Prohibited Conduct;
- The maintenance of a safe, nondiscriminatory and respectful environment conducive to learning; and
- Any other mitigating, aggravating, or compelling factors.

Sanctions are effective immediately, unless otherwise specified by the Review Panel.

In addition to other sanctions, the Review Panel may direct the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel to impose or extend a No-Contact Directive and impose or extend academic and/or DDBS employment modifications, as may be appropriate; impose or extend increased monitoring, supervision, and/or security at locations or in connection with activities where the Prohibited Conduct occurred or is likely to reoccur; arrange for conducting targeted or broad-based educational programming or training for relevant persons or groups; impose one or more restorative remedies to encourage a Respondent to develop insight about the Prohibited Conduct, learn about the impact of that Prohibited Conduct on the Complainant and DDBS community, and identify how to prevent that Prohibited Conduct in the future (including community service and mandatory participation in training, education and/or prevention programs related to the Prohibited Conduct); and/or impose any other remedial or protective measures that are tailored to achieve the goals of the Title IX Policy.

Transcript Notations

If the Review Panel imposes a sanction of expulsion or suspension, the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will notify DDBS Registrar to place a prominent notation on the Respondent's transcript.

Decision of the Review Panel

The decision of the Review Panel is final, without further recourse or appeal by either party.

Final Outcome Letter

The Review Panel will issue a written decision (the "Final Outcome Letter") to both the Complainant and the Respondent, with a copy to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel within five (5) calendar days following the Review Panel Hearing (or such longer time as the Panel determines as good cause would determine). The Final Outcome Letter will set forth the violation(s) of the Title IX Policy and, if applicable, the DDBS policy and/or the Standards of Conduct for which the Respondent was found responsible or not responsible, as supported by the rationale set forth in the Final Investigation Report and/or modified by the Review Panel; the sanction(s) (if applicable) imposed against the Respondent; and the rationale for any sanctions) imposed. The Final Outcome Letter may also identify protective measures implemented with respect to the Respondent or the broader DDBS community. The Final Outcome Letter will not disclose any remedial measures provided to the Complainant.

Release of Documents

Under federal privacy laws, the Final Investigation Report, statements of one party that are shared with the other party in the resolution process, and any documents prepared by DDBS, including documents by or for the Review Panel in advance of the Hearing, constitute education records which may not be disclosed outside of the proceedings, except as may be required or authorized by law. The DDBS does not, however, impose any restrictions on the parties regarding re-disclosure of the incident, their participation in proceedings under these Procedures, or the Final Outcome Letter.

Alternative Resolution

The Complainant may seek Alternative Resolution in place of an investigation and Formal Resolution. DDBS, however, has the discretion to determine whether the nature of the reported conduct is appropriate for Alternative Resolution, to determine the type of Alternative Resolution that may be appropriate in a specific case to refer a report for Formal Resolution at any time. In addition, Alternative Resolution may not be available where the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel has determined that one or more of the RISK FACTORS of these Procedures

is present. Forms of Alternative Resolution that involve face-to-face meetings between the Complainant and the Respondent, such as mediation, are not available in cases involving SEXUAL ASSAULT.

Participation in Alternative Resolution (including any specific form of Alternative Resolution) is voluntary. The DDBS will not compel a Complainant or Respondent to engage in Alternative Resolution, will not compel a Complainant to directly confront the Respondent, and will allow a Complainant or Respondent to withdraw from Alternative Resolution at any time. The DDBS may decline the request for Alternative Resolution in any particular case and may terminate an ongoing Alternative Resolution process at any time. Pursuing Alternative Resolution does not preclude later use of Formal Resolution if the Alternative Resolution fails to achieve a resolution acceptable to the parties and DDBS. Where the Complainant or the Respondent withdraws from Alternative Resolution or Alternative Resolution is otherwise terminated for any reason, any statements or disclosures made by the parties during the course of the Alternative Resolution.

With any form of Alternative Resolution, each party has the right to choose and consult with an advisor. The advisor may be any person, including an attorney, who is not otherwise a party or witness to the reported incident(s). The parties may be accompanied by their respective advisors at any meeting or proceeding held as part of Alternative Resolution. While the advisors may provide support and advice to the parties at any meeting and/or proceeding, they may not speak on behalf of the parties or otherwise participate in, or in any manner disrupt, such meetings and/or proceedings.

Alternative Resolution may include:

RESOLUTION WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF A THIRD PARTY: A Complainant may seek assistance in informally resolving a report of Prohibited Conduct from the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, who can arrange to have a trained representative facilitate a meeting or meetings between the parties. The availability of this form of Alternative Resolution, and any resolution reached through such form of Alternative Resolution, is subject to the agreement of the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, the Complainant and the Respondent. This form of Alternative Resolution may not be used where the allegation involves SEXUAL ASSAULT.

INTERVENTIONS AND REMEDIES: Alternative Resolution agreements may involve a host of interventions and remedies, such as actions designed to maximize the Complainant's access to educational, extracurricular, and/or DDBS employment activities; increased monitoring, supervision, and/or security at locations or activities where the Prohibited Conduct occurred or is likely to reoccur; targeted or broad-based educational programming or training for relevant individuals or groups; academic modifications for Student Complainants; workplace modifications for Employee Complainants; one or more of the restorative remedies or other sanctions described in these Procedures; and/or any other remedial or protective measures that can be tailored to the involved individuals to achieve the goals of the Title IX Policy.

Any form of Alternative Resolution and any combination of interventions and remedies may be utilized. If an agreement acceptable to DDBS, the Complainant, and the Respondent is reached through Alternative Resolution, the terms of the agreement are implemented and the matter is resolved and closed. If an agreement is not reached, and the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel determines that further action is necessary, or if a Respondent fails to comply with the terms of the Alternative Resolution, the matter may be referred for an investigation and Formal Resolution under these Procedures.

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will maintain records of all reports and conduct referred for Alternative Resolution, which typically will be completed within thirty (30) calendar days.

Academic Transcript Notations

The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will direct DDBS Registrar to include a prominent notation on the academic transcript of any Student who has been

- (1) suspended,
- (2) expelled (i.e., permanently dismissed), or
- (3) who has withdrawn from DDBS while under investigation,
- for Prohibited Conduct pursuant to the Title IX Policy.

Such notation will reflect, as appropriate, the following language: "[Suspended, Expelled, or Withdrew While Under Investigation] for a Violation of DDBS's Policy on Sexual and Gender-Based Harassment and Other Forms of Interpersonal Violence." The Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel will remove any such transcript notation where:

- a) a Student is subsequently found not to have committed an act of Prohibited Conduct pursuant to the Title IX Policy, and/or
- b) a Student who has been suspended for Prohibited Conduct pursuant to the Title IX Policy, has
 - a. completed the term of such suspension and any conditions thereof, and
 - b. has been determined by DDBS to be in good standing pursuant to all applicable DDBS academic and non-academic standards.

Records Retention

The DDBS shall retain all records relating to a report of Prohibited Conduct for a period of ten (10) years after the date the report was received, and DDBS shall retain all of such records for a period of twenty years in cases in which the Respondent was found responsible for Prohibited Conduct.

- These Procedures should be read in conjunction with the Title IX Policy. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in these Procedures are defined in the Title IX Policy. For purposes of these Procedures, the "Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel" means the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, any Deputy Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel, and/or any of their respective trained designees.
- Pursuant to DDBS policy, certain DDBS employees, called "Responsible Employees," are required to report to the Title IX Evaluation and Review Panel all information disclosed to them about an incident of Prohibited Conduct. See "Reporting by DDBS Employees of Disclosures Relating to Sexual and Gender-Based Harassment and Other Forms of Interpersonal Violence."
- 3. Where the law enforcement agency that would be responsible for investigating the alleged act of Prohibited Conduct is located outside of the United States, this disclosure is not required by the Reporting Statute.
- 4. Although a report may be reopened at any time, DDBS will only be able to pursue disciplinary resolution and sanctions where the Respondent continues to be a DDBS "Student" (i.e., continues to be registered or enrolled for credit- or non-credit-bearing coursework at DDBS).

Prevention Education

Institutions are required to provide to students and employees, on an introductory and ongoing basis, prevention and awareness programs on the crimes covered above. These programs must include material on bystander intervention and risk reduction aimed at recognizing the warning signs of these crimes.

Student and Employee Rights

Institutions must provide victims of the crimes covered above with a written explanation of their rights. These rights include the option for a relocation/change of housing, transportation, or academic course assignment. They also include access to counseling services, legal services, and law enforcement notification.

Crime Statistics Report

The Campus Safety and Security Survey contains the following criminal offenses reported to the campus or local law enforcement as occurring on campus or on public property within close proximity of the campus. The survey includes a category specific to hate crimes. An Annual Security report includes incidents for the last three completed calendar years. The Annual Crime Statistics Report is located in Appendix C.

Fire Safety Report

Each year (DDBS) publishes an Annual Security Report of crime statistics for the previous year. DDBS has compiled the crime statistics for its Harbortown location at 3300 E. Jefferson Ave, Ste 450, Detroit, MI 48207 and surrounding vicinity of the Southwest Detroit location. The annual Fire Safety Report is located in Appendix D.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL PREVENTION POLICY

Policy Reason

The Part 86 regulations require that, as a condition of receiving funds or any other form of financial assistance under any federal program, an institution of higher education (IHE) must certify that it has adopted and implemented a program "to prevent the unlawful possession, use, or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by students and employees" both on the institution's premises and as part of any of its activities, in order to comply with the Drug-Free Schools and Campuses Regulations (EDGAR Part 86.100, Subpart B).

DDBS Drug and Alcohol Policy

DDBS provides a drug-free and alcohol-free environment for its faculty, staff and students. The unlawful possession, use, distribution, dispensation, sale, or manufacture of drugs or alcohol is prohibited on DDBS campus premises and at any DDBS school activity/function. No employee or student is to report or return to school, work, or any company activity while under the influence of drugs or alcohol. For purposes of this policy, a conviction includes a plea of guilty or of nolo contendere.

Alcohol and Drug Testing Policy

If DDBS believes that a student or employee has been observed possessing or using a prohibited substance while on campus, random drug or alcohol testing may be conducted. Drug or alcohol testing may also occur if DDBS reasonably believes that any student or employee may be under the influence of drugs or alcohol during school/work hours, while engaged in school business or a sponsored activity and that this may adversely affect their performance or the campus environment. Any student or employee who has a positive drug or alcohol impairment test may be subjected to periodic, random testing for a period of up to one year.

Testing Methods and Conditions

Testing will ordinarily be conducted during, immediately before, or immediately after regularly scheduled school/work hours. For current employees, time spent in testing and in traveling to and from the regular work site to the place of testing is considered work time.

Testing shall be conducted under the following conditions:

- Sample collection shall be performed under reasonable and sanitary conditions.
- Sample collection shall be labeled in such a way as to reasonably preclude the possibility of misidentification of test results.
- Prior to testing, the individual shall be provided with an opportunity to notify DDBS of any information relevant to the test.
- Sample collection, storage, and transportation shall be performed in a manner prudently designed to preclude the possibility of sample contamination or misidentification.
- Sample testing will be done in compliance with scientifically accepted analytical methods and procedures by a laboratory approved or certified by at least one of the following:
 - United States Department of Health and Human Services,
 - College of American Pathologists, or
 - Michigan Department of Health and Human Services.

Upon written request, a positive drug test result shall be confirmed by a subsequent test using a different but comparably reliable chemical process than used in the initial drug screen. For instance, chromatographic spectroscopy could be conducted to confirm results.

Employee and Student Testing Rights

- Employees and students have the right, upon written request, to obtain a copy of the written test results.
- DDBS will not release information relating to testing, including test results, to any third parties, except upon written authorization of the employee or student, or when legally compelled to do so.

Refusal of Testing

Refusal to participate in drug or alcohol testing or refusal to accept the terms and conditions of testing as specified in this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination from DDBS. Any prospective employee or student who refuses to undergo drug or alcohol testing is not eligible for hire or admission (respectively).

Please direct any questions, concerns, or reports regarding this policy to the School Director.

DDBS's Policy on Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages on Campus

The use or possession of alcohol is expressly prohibited in classrooms, conference rooms, the student media center, within the building, or any area where events, lectures, or meetings

are held. The use of alcohol is expressly prohibited in all public areas of the campus building.

For employees only, social activities held off-premises and paid for on a personal basis are not affected by this policy. If management considers it appropriate and approves of such use in writing, alcoholic beverages may be served at company-sponsored events held off-premises.

DDBS's Policy on Consumption and Possession of Marijuana

DDBS does not allow the use, possession, or cultivation of marijuana or marijuana paraphernalia on its property or on any DDBS controlled premises. DDBS recognizes that federal laws take precedence over state laws. *Therefore, all students, employees, and visitors must be aware that the Michigan Medical Marijuana Act (MMMA) and the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act (MRTMA) conflict with Federal, criminal laws governing controlled substances as well as Federal laws requiring institutions receiving Federal funds, by grant or contract, to maintain drug-free campuses and workplaces.*

Because DDBS participates in such federal grant programs that would be jeopardized, the use, possession, or cultivation of marijuana in any form, for any purpose, on DDBS's property or premises, violates the DDBS Drug and Alcohol Policy even if a student, employee, or visitor has been properly certified as a medical marijuana user.

Students, employees, and visitors are asked to remove or dispose of their marijuana from DDBS's property and premises immediately. Furthermore, the MMMA and MRTMA state that employers are not required to accommodate employees who use medical marijuana. Therefore, employers have the right to refuse employment to anyone who fails a drug test. Additionally, the State of Michigan prohibits a person from undertaking any task under the influence of marijuana, when doing so would constitute negligence or professional malpractice, as in many areas of the medical field. As a result, drug testing may be required at any time by a prospective employer consistent with the laws of the State of Michigan and the requirements of potential employers.

Drug-Free Workplace with Drug & Alcohol Polices and Abuse Prevention Program

Due to DDBS's participation in Title IV Federal Funds Programs, DDBS has established a Drug- Free Workplace with Drug & Alcohol Policies and Abuse Prevention Program. All employees and students must read, understand, and sign a statement regarding this policy. As a

condition of enrollment/employment, students and staff must agree to willingly participate in the program and abide by the terms of the policy.

DDBS has established this program to inform employees and students about:

- DDBS's policy of maintaining a drug-free environment,
- Drug and alcohol counseling and rehabilitation,
- Penalties that may be imposed upon students and employees for drug abuse violations, and
- The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.

In accordance with this policy and program, DDBS has imposed the following requirements:

- Employees shall notify their supervisor or other appropriate management personnel, and students shall notify the Director of Operations of any criminal conviction for a substance-related violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
- Within ten (10) days of having received notice, DDBS shall notify any federal contracting agency that a student or employee engaged in the performance of a federal contract or grant has had a criminal drug statute conviction for a violation in the workplace.
- Any student or employee who is convicted for a violation occurring in the workplace is required to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program.

Disciplinary Action upon Conviction

Any violation of or unsatisfactory conduct related to DDBS's drug-free campus policy may result in discipline including (but not limited to):

- Requiring the student/employee to satisfactorily participate in a drug or alcohol abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health agency, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency, including mandatory counseling, evaluation, treatment, and rehabilitation for a drug-use or alcohol-use disorder;
- Appropriate personnel action, including but not limited to, termination of enrollment/employment; and
- Referral for prosecution consistent with local, state, and federal law.

Title IV Federal Financial Aid Drug Polices

Disciplinary action by DDBS does not preclude the possibility of criminal charges being filed. Similarly, the filing of criminal charges does not preclude action by DDBS.

Any student or employee who is convicted of a criminal drug offense at the workplace shall be subject to discipline consistent with applicable DDBS policies and contracts. Offenders may be required to participate in an appropriate drug or alcohol treatment program as a condition of further enrollment or employment.

Advisory Committee Board Members encourage the administration to explore additional ways to ensure that members of the DDBS community are aware of the dangers inherent in the abuse of drugs and alcohol, and to assist those who suffer from alcohol or drug abuse disorders in obtaining access to necessary rehabilitation and treatment. All faculty, staff, and students must abide by the terms of this policy as a condition of enrollment/employment at DDBS.

All students and employees must comply with federal, state, and local laws regarding the possession and consumption of alcohol and controlled substances. Legal sanctions for failure to comply with local, state, and federal laws may include:

- Suspension, revocation, or denial of a driver's license;
- Loss of eligibility for federal financial aid or other federal benefits;
- Disqualification from employment;
- Property seizure;
- Community service;
- Imprisonment; and
- Monetary fines.

Biennial Review Policy

To comply with the regulations, every two years an IHE must conduct a review of its drug and alcohol program to determine effectiveness and the consistency of sanction enforcement, in order to identify and implement any necessary changes. The Department of Education recommends that IHEs conduct the biennial review in even-numbered years and focus their report on the two preceding academic years.

Upon request, DDBS will make available to the Department of Education and to the public, all information distributed to students and employees and the results of the biennial review of DDBS's Drug and Alcohol Program.

Biennial Review Procedure

The Director of Financial Aid and the Director of Operations will

- Conduct a review of the Drug and Alcohol program in even-numbered years starting in 2022;
- Post the updated review on the School's website, in the student break area, and at the Financial Aid office;

- Provide, upon request, to the U.S. Department of Education and to any interested parties, all information distributed to students and employees regarding the results of a biennial review of the school's program;
- Determine the effectiveness of the program and what changes need to be implemented;
- Tally the number of drug and alcohol related instances that occurred either on-campus or as part of DDBS's activities;
- Determine the number and type of sanctions that were imposed; and
- Ensure that sanctions are consistently enforced.

Abuse Prevention Program

DDBS encourages employees and students who may have substance abuse problems to seek professional advice and treatment. DDBS has adopted and implemented prevention programs within our institution to train all faculty and staff on our Drug and Alcohol abuse policy. In the event one of our staff or faculty should witness or report abuse on campus, DDBS will provide the resources necessary in order to prevent further, similar unlawful possession, use, or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by all students and employees on school premises or as part of any of its activities.

DDBS employees and students may obtain confidential assistance through Michigan's "Get Help Now" map at <u>www.michigan.gov/bhrecovery</u> or by calling 1-800-622-HELP for a referral to a treatment center or support group in your area.

If a student or employee witnesses a violation of this policy by their peers, they are required to report as much to the Director of Operations or a member of the administration. If you need additional resources such as crisis intervention, treatment and recovery support, counseling, prevention information, or local contact information, please see the drug and alcohol awareness bulletin board located at the School. These are confidential resources.

For a complete list of the federal penalties due to a conviction for possession or distribution of drugs, please see the on-campus drug and alcohol awareness bulletin board or Appendices A and B.

Help, Information, & Resources

Drugs and alcohol can be highly addictive and injurious to the body. Consumption of drugs or alcohol cause a number of marked changes in behavior and serious health threats. Impairment of employees while on the job or students while in school is likely to result in injury to others or third parties and affects the morale & productivity of everyone.

Abuse of alcohol and drugs can present significant health risks and medical consequences including, but not limited to, the following:

- Abusing alcohol or other drugs can be fatal.
- Alcohol abuse can result in liver damage & disease, gastrointestinal problems, and brain damage.
- Abuse of alcohol and marijuana during puberty can cause an imbalance of sex hormones, resulting in reduced muscle mass & shrinkage of testicles in males and menstrual difficulties & infertility in females.
- Long-term use of stimulants ("uppers," including speed, crack, meth, amphetamines, etc.) may cause permanent damage to the brain, heart, lungs, and other organs.
- The use of cocaine and amphetamines can result in heart attacks. People who lack an enzyme called Pseudocholinesterase in their bodies can die from a single, minute dose of cocaine.
- Inhalants (poppers, rush, nitrous oxide, sniffing glue or paint thinner, etc.) may cause mental confusion, mood swings, delusions, or hallucinations.
- The use of hallucinogens especially PCP (angel dust) can result in an irreversible, drug-induced psychotic state and/or delusions, that can trigger life- threatening behavior.
- Depressants ("downers," including ludes, reds, 714s, barbs, etc.) greatly increase the risk of automobile accidents because they affect vision, judgment, coordination, and other physical skills.
- Intravenous (IV) drug users (users of heroin and other opiates) risk infection by diseases such as hepatitis & Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) from sharing needles.

DDBS encourages employees and students who may have substance abuse problems to seek professional advice and treatment. DDBS has adopted and implemented prevention programs within our institution to train all faculty and staff on our drug and alcohol abuse policy. In the event one of our staff or faculty should witness, or report abuse on campus, DSDT will provide the resources necessary in order to prevent further, similar unlawful possession, use, or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by all students and employees on school premises or as part of any of its activities.

DRUG/SCHEDULE	QUANTITY	PENALTIES	QUANTITY	PENALTIES			
Cocaine (Schedule II)	500-4999 grams mixture	First Offense:	5 kgs or more mixture	First Offense: Not less than			
Cocaine Base (Schedule II)	28–279 grams mixture	Not less than 5 yrs, and not more than 40 yrs. If death or	280 grams or more mixture	10 yrs, and not more than life. If death or serious injury, not less than 20 or more than life.			
Fentanyl (Schedule II)	40-399 grams mixture	serious injury, not less than 20 or more than life. Fine of not	400 grams or more mixture	Fine of not more than \$10 mil- lion if an individual, \$50 million			
Fentanyl Analogue (Schedule I)	10–99 grams mixture	more than \$5 million if an individual, \$25	100 grams or more mixture	if not an individual. Second Offense: Not less			
Heroin (Schedule I)	100–999 grams mixture	million if not an individual.	1 kg or more mixture	than 20 yrs, and not more than life. If death or serious injury,			
LSD (Schedule I)	1–9 grams mixture	Second Offense: Not less than 10	10 grams or more mixture	life imprisonment. Fine of not more than \$20			
Methamphetamine	5-49 grams pure or	yrs, and not more than life. If death or	50 grams or more pure or	million if an individual, \$75 million if not an individual.			
(Schedule II)	50-499 grams mixture	serious injury, life imprisonment.	500 grams or more mixture	2 or More Prior Offenses: Life imprisonment. Fine of			
PCP (Schedule II)	10–99 grams pure or 100–999 grams mixture	Fine of not more than \$8 million if an individual, \$50 million if not an individual.	100 gm or more pure or 1 kg or more mixture	not more than \$20 million if an individual, \$75 million if not an individual.			
		PENALTIES					
Other Schedule I & II Any amount First Offense: Not more than 20 yrs. If death or serious injury, not less than 20 yrs, or more than life. Fine \$1 million if an individual, \$5 million if not an individual.							
Hydroxybutyric Acid) Flunitrazepam (Schedule IV)	1 gram	Second Offense: Not more than 30 yrs. If death or serious bodily injury, life imprison- ment. Fine \$2 million if an individual, \$10 million if not an individual.					
Other Schedule III drugs	Any amount	First Offense: Not more than 10 years. If death or serious injury, not more that 15 yrs. Fine not more than \$500,000 if an individual, \$2.5 million if not an individual.					
		Second Offense: Not more than 20 yrs. If death or serious injury, not more than 30 yrs. Fine not more than \$1 million if an individual, \$5 million if not an individual.					
All other Schedule IV drugs	Any amount	First Offense: Not more than 5 yrs. Fine not more than \$250,000 if an individ-					
Flunitrazepam (Schedule IV)	Other than 1 gram or more	ual, \$1 million if not an individual. Second Offense: Not more than 10 yrs. Fine not more than \$500,000 if an individ- ual, \$2 million if other than an individual.					
All Schedule V drugs	Any amount	First Offense: Not more than 1 yr. Fine not more than \$100,000 if an individual, \$250,000 if not an individual. Second Offense: Not more than 4 yrs. Fine not more than \$200,000 if an individ- ual, \$500,000 if not an individual.					

FEDERAL TRAFFICKING PENALTIES

FEDERAL TRAFFICKING PENALTIES-MARIJUANA-

DRUG	QUANTITY	1st OFFENSE	2nd OFFENSE *
Marijuana (Schedule I)	1,000 kg or more marijuana mixture; or 1,000 or more marijuana plants	Not less than 10 yrs. or more than life. If death or serious bodily injury, not less than 20 yrs., or more than life. Fine not more than life. Fine not more than \$10 million if an individual, \$50 million if other than an individual.	Not less than 20 yrs. or more than life. If death or serious bodily injury, life imprisonment. Fine not more than \$20 moillion if an individual, \$75 million if other than an individual.
Marijuana (Schedule I)	100 kg to 999 kg marijuana mixture; or 100 to 999 marijuana plants	Not less than 5 yrs. or more than 40 yrs. If death or serious bodily injury, not less than 20 yrs., or more than life. Fine not more than life. Fine not more than \$5 million if an individual, \$25 million if other than an individual.	Not less than 10 yrs. or more than life. If death or serious bodily injury, life imprisonment. Fine not more than \$20 moillion if an individual, \$75 million if other than an individual.
Marijuana (Schedule I)	More than 10 kgs hashish; 50 to 99 kg marijuana mixture More than 1 kg of hashish oil; 50 to 99 marijuana plants	Not less than 20 yrs. If death or serious bodily injury, not less than 20 yrs., or more than life. Fine \$1 million if an individual, \$5 million if other than an individual.	Not less than 30 yrs. If death or serious bodily injury, life imprisonment. Fine \$2 million if an individual, \$10 million if other than an individual.
Marijuana (Schedule I)	Less than 50 kilograms marijuana (but does not include 50 or more marijuana plants regardless of weight) marijuana plants; 1 to 49 marijuana plants;	Not less than 5 yrs. Fine not more than \$250,000, \$1 million if other than an individual	Not less than 10 yrs. Fine \$500,000 if an individual, \$2 million if other than individual
Hashish (Schedule I)	10 kg or less		
Hashish Oil (Schedule I)	1 kg or less		

*The minimum sentence for a violation after two or more prior convictions for a felony drug offense have become final is a mandatory term of life imprisonment without release and a fine up to \$20 million if an individual and \$75 million if other than an individual.

https://www.dea.gov/documents/2020/04/13/drugs-abuse

Appendix C – Crime Statistics Report

The Campus Safety and Security Survey contains the following criminal offenses reported to local law enforcement as occurring on campus or on public property within close proximity of the campus. The survey includes a category specific to hate crimes. An Annual Security report includes incidents for the last three completed calendar years. DDBS has compiled the crime statistics at its Harbortown facility, located at 3300 E. Jefferson Ave, Ste. 450, Detroit, MI 48207 and the surrounding vicinity.

		On-campus	On-campus	On-campus	Off-campus	Off-campus	Off-campus
		1/1/2022	1/1/2021	1/1/2020	1/1/2022	1/1/2021	1/1/2020
		to	to	to	to	to	to
		12/31/2022	12/31/2021	12/31/2020	12/31/2022	12/31/2021	12/31/2020
Criminal Offenses							
Murder/Non-negligent n	nanslaugh	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent manslaughter		0	0	0	0	0	C
Sex Offenses - Forcible		0	0	0	0	0	C
Rape		0	0	0	0	0	C
Fondling		0	0	0	0	0	0
Sex Offenses - Non-forci	ble	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest		0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape		0	0	0	0	0	C
Robbery		0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault		0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary		0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft		0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson		0	0	0	0	0	0
Hate Crimes							
Hate Crimes		0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrests for Liquor, Drug,	and Weap	ons Law Viol	ation				
Weapons (Carrying, Poss	essing, et	0	0	0	0	0	C
Liquor Law Violations		0	0	0	0	0	C
Drug Law Violations		0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault		0	0	0	0	0	C
Intimidation		0	0	0	0	0	C
Destruction, Damage, or	Vandalisn	0	0	0	0	0	C
VAWA Offenses							
Domestic Violence		0	0	0	0	0	C
Dating Violence		0	0	0	0	0	C
Stalking		0	0	0	0	0	C
Disciplinary Referrals for	Liquor, D	rug, and Wea	pons Law Vio	lation			
Weapons (Carrying, Poss	essing, et	0	0	0	0	0	0
Liquor Law Violations		0	0	0	0	0	(
Drug Law Violations		0	0	0	0	0	(
Unfounded Crimes							
Unfounded Crimes		0	0	0	0	0	(

Appendix D – Fire Safety Report

DDBS publishes an Annual Fire Safety Report including incidents for the last three completed calendar years. DDBS has compiled the number of fires at its Harbortown facility, located at 3300 E. Jefferson Ave, Ste. 450, Detroit, MI 48207 and the surrounding vicinity.

Fire Safety Report 2020 -	2022						
		On-campus	On-campus	On-campus	Off-campus	Off-campus	Off-campus
		1/1/2022	1/1/2021	1/1/2020	1/1/2022	1/1/2021	1/1/2020
		to	to	to	to	to	to
		12/31/2022	12/31/2021	12/31/2020	12/31/2022	12/31/2021	12/31/2020
Total Number of Fires							
3300 E. Jefferson, Ste 45	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Detroit, MI 48207							

Appendix E – Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan



EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND EVACUATION PLAN



Version Date: 2020/2023

3300 E. JEFFERSON STE 450 DETROIT, MI 48207 MAIN PHONE LINE: 313-974-6164 WWW.DYMONDDESIGNSBEAUTY.COM

PURPOSE

DDBS is dedicated to providing employment opportunities in the Beauty Industry to the students we serve. Sometimes incidents may emerge that require immediate actions therefore it is mandatory that the school has an emergency readiness plan. The purpose of the Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan (EREP) is to ensure the safety of all who work, attend or visit the school's campus in accordance with local, state and federal regulations.

DDBS campus is required to maintain an Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan (EREP) which incorporates the five phases of emergency preparedness: Prevention, Protection, Mitigation, Response, and Recovery. Together these elements assist in ensuring campus faculty, students and visitors alike have guided instructions outlined and detailed in the event of an emergency and evacuation. The chief operations officer is designated as the emergency safety authority (ESA). In this role, the chief operations officer shall be responsible for reporting and ensuring the evacuation of the campus in the case of an emergency.

For additional information, please contact the school director at 313-974-6164

<u>MARLENE BROOKS</u> Marlene Brooks, CEO Dymond Designs Beauty School 3300 E. Jefferson suite, 450 Detroit, Michigan 48207

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PHONE NUMBERS

Campus Non- Emergencies	248-506-6888
Campus Emergencies	911
Police Department	313-596-5700
Fire Department	313-596-2900
Ambulance	313-879-2020

PROCEDURES FOR REPORTING FIRE OR OTHER EMERGENCIES

Instances of emergencies shall be reported to local authorities by calling 911. After 911 has been contacted, please call the emergency safety authority at 248-506-6888.

Employee Responsibilities

- 1. Reporting any emergency situation
- **2.** Reading and understanding this Procedures.
- **3.** Being aware of their primary and secondary emergency exits.
- Asking questions when any Information is unclear or not Understood.
- **5.** Understanding the proper operation of Emergency evacuation equipment.
- Informing Director/Manager of special Emergency evacuation needs.

Supervisor Responsibilities

- Providing staff, students and visitors emergency response information and Training.
- 2. Identifying mobility impaired employees who might need assistance during evacuation.
- **3.** Providing opportunity for employees to ask questions.

EMERGENCY REPORTING AND EVACUATION PROCEDURES

Types of emergencies to be reported by Director are: Fire Bomb Threat Severe Weather Public Lockdowns Limited Lockdowns Directional Evacuations Other (specify)_____ (e.g., terrorist attack/hostage taking

EVACUATION ROUTES

• Evacuation route maps have been posted throughout the institution and work areas.

The following information is marked on evacuation maps:

- 1. Emergency exits
- 2. Primary and secondary evacuation routes
- 3. Locations of fire extinguishers
- 4. Fire alarm pull stations location
- Faculty and staff should know at least two evacuation routes.

FIRE EMERGENCY

When fire is discovered:

- Activate the nearest fire alarm (if installed)
- Notify the local Fire Department by calling 313-596-2900
- If the fire alarm is not available, notify the Director at 248-506-6888

Fight the fire ONLY if:

- The Fire Department has been notified.
- The fire is small and is not spreading to other areas.
- Escaping the area is possible by backing up to the nearest exit.
- The fire extinguisher is in working condition and personnel are trained to use it.

Upon being notified about the fire emergency, occupants must:

- Leave the building using the designated escape routes.
- Assemble in the rear parking lot next to the chase bank.
- Remain outside until the Director of Operations announces that it is safe to reenter.

ESA must:

- Disconnect utilities and equipment unless doing so jeopardize his/her safety.
- Coordinate an orderly evacuation of personnel.
- Perform an accurate headcount of personnel/students reported to the designated area.
- Determine a rescue method to locate missing personnel/students.
- Provide the Fire Department personnel with the necessary information about the facility.
- Perform assessment and coordinate weather forecast office emergency closing procedures.

All member of the staff must:

- Ensure that all employees/students have evacuated the building.
- Report any problems to the Director of Operations at the assembly area.

Assistants to Physically Challenged should:

• Assist all physically challenged employees/students in emergency evacuation.

TELEPHONE BOMB THREAT CHECKLIST

INSTRUCTIONS:

BE CALM, BE COURTEOUS, LISTEN. DO NOT INTERRUPT THE CALLER.

YOUR NAME:			
TIME:	DATE:		
CALLERS IDENTITY SEX: Male:	Female: A	dult Juvenile	
APROXIMATE AGE: 0	DRIGIN OF CALL: Local	Long distance	_
VOICE CHARACTERISTICS	SPEECH	MANNER	LANUAGE
Loud Soft High Pitch Deep Raspy Pleasant Intoxicated Other	Fast Distinct Stutter Slurred Slow Distorted	Calm Angry Rational Irrational Coherent Incoherent Deliberate	Excellent Good Fair Poor Foul Nasal Other BACKGROUND
ACCENT Local Foreign Race Not Local Region	Nasal Other	Righteous Emotional Laughing	NOISES Factory Machines Trains Music Other

Bomb Facts

PRETEND DIFFICULTY HEARING* KEEP CALLER TALKING *IF THE CALLER SEEMS AGREEABLE TO FURTHER CONVERSATION, ASK QUESTIONS LIKE:

When will it go off? Certain Hour____ Time Remaining____ Where is it located? Building_____ Area____ What kind of bomb? _____ What kind of package? _____ How do you know so much about the bomb? _____ What is your name and address? _____ If the building is occupied, inform the caller that detonation could cause injury or death.

Activate malicious call trace: Hang up phone and do not answer another line. Choose same line and dial *57 (if your phone has this capability). Listen for the confirmation announcement and hang up.

Call Security at **313- 259-5578** and relay information about the call. Did the caller appear familiar with the campus (by his/her description of the bomb location)? Write out the message in its entirety and any other comments on a separate sheet of paper and attach to his checklist. Notify the Director of Operations immediately.

SEVERE WEATHER

TORNADO:

• When a warning is issued by sirens or other means, seek inside shelter.

Consider the following:

- Small interior rooms on the lowest floor and without windows,
- ▶ Hallways on the lowest floor away from doors and windows, and
- > Rooms constructed with reinforced concrete, brick, or block with no windows.
- Stay away from outside walls and windows
- \blacktriangleright Use Arms to protect the head and neck.
- > Remain sheltered until the tornado threat is announced to be over.

• EARTHQUAKE:

- Stay calm and await instructions from the ESA
- Keep away from overhead fixtures, windows, filing cabinets, and electrical power.
- Assist people with disabilities in finding a safe place.
- Evacuate as instructed by the ESA

FLOOD:

If indoors:

- Be ready to evacuate as directed by the ESA
- Follow the recommended primary or secondary evacuation routes. **If outdoors**:
- Climb to high ground and stay there
- Avoid walking or driving through flood water.
- If a car stalls, abandon it immediately and climb to a higher ground.

Blizzard:

If indoors:

- Stay calm and await instructions from the ESA
- Stay indoors!

If there is no heat:

- Close off unneeded rooms or areas
- Stuff towels or rags in cracks under doors.
- Cover windows at night.
- Eat and Drink. Food provides the body with energy and heat. Fluids prevent dehydration.
- Wear layers of loose-fitting, lightweight, warm clothing, if available.

If outdoors:

- Find a dry shelter. Cover all exposed parts of the body.
- If shelter is not available:
 - > Prepare a lean-to, wind break, or snow cave for protection from the wind.
 - Build a fire for heat and to attract attention. Place rocks around the fire to absorb and reflect heat.
 - > Do not eat snow. It will lower your body temperature. Melt it first.

If stranded in a car or truck:

- Stay in the vehicle!
- Run the motor about ten minutes each hour. Open the window a little for fresh air to avoid carbon monoxide poisoning. Make sure the exhaust pipe is not blocked.
- Make yourself visible to rescuers.
 - > Turn on the dome light at night when running the engine.
 - \blacktriangleright Tie a colored cloth to your antenna or door.

- > Raise the hood after the snow stops falling.
- Exercise to keep blood circulating and to keep warm

LOCKDOWNS

In the event of an emergency and notification of a campus lockdown, please follow the procedures below.

- Remain calm. Encourage others to remain calm.
- Immediately cease all activity (i.e., teaching, group work, meetings etc....)
- Lock or barricade all doors where possible, use furniture or desk as cover.
- If possible, cover any windows or openings that have a direct line of sight into a hallway.
- Shut the blinds or pull the shades down. Turn off the lights and try to give the impression that the room is empty.
- Stay low, away from windows and doors.
- Sit on the floor or crouch under or behind desks and bookshelves where possible, to be as invisible as possible.
- Immediately put all cell phones on "Vibrate" or "Silent" mode. Calls to 911 should be made only if specific information becomes available regarding the location or conduct of the intruder or if the status of the emergency changes.
- Be as quiet as possible.
- DO NOT respond to anyone at the door until an "all clear" message is received via campus notification systems or if you are certain that it is safe to do so (i.e., if police are at the door.)
- If you are directed by the police to leave your secured area, assist others in moving as quietly as possible.
- Do not sound the fire alarm in the building unless there is a fire. People may be placed in harm's way when they are attempting to evacuate the building. If a fire alarm does go off during a lockdown, do not evacuate unless you smell smoke or see fire in your area.
- If you are outside of a building when a lockdown is announced, if it is safe to do so, run into the nearest building with hands raised above your head and palms facing outward and follow the above lockdown instructions. If it is not safe to run into a building, hide behind a large heavy object (i.e., vehicle, tree). Notify 911 of your location when safe to do so. If off-campus do not return and follow official instructions from the campus notification system.
- Be aware of alternate exits if it becomes necessary to flee.